
Approved 

WRRTC MINUTES 

Wisconsin River Rail Transit Commission 
  Full Commission Meeting  10 am  Friday, 6 June 2008  Dane Co Hwy Garage  2302 Fish Hatchery Rd  Madison, WI 

1.  Karl Nilson, Chair, called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  

He made note of the new appointees to the Commission – DuWayne Carlin and Margaret Ruf (Grant County), 

Gerald Dorscheid and Joe Thomas (Iowa County), Katie Kuznacic and Terry Thomas (Rock County), and Halsey 

Sprecher (Sauk County) – and welcomed those who were in attendance. 

2.  Roll Call (Commissioners present for all or part of the meeting): 

County Commissioner June   County Commissioner June 

Crawford Vacant 
   Rock Katie Kuznacic X 

Crawford Tom Cornford 
   Rock Alan Sweeney X 

Crawford Rocky Rocksvold 
   Rock Terry Thomas X 

Dane Jim Haefs-Flemming 
   alternate Ben Coopman x 

Dane Forrest Van Schwartz X   Sauk Halsey Sprecher X 

Dane Gene Gray X   Sauk Joel Gaalswijk 
 

Grant Margaret Ruf X   Sauk Larry Volz X 

Grant Robert Scallon X   alternate Rob Sinklair 
 

  DuWayne Carlin X   Walworth Richard Kuhnke X 

Iowa Joe Thomas 
   Walworth Allan  Polyock 

 
Iowa Charles Anderson 

   Walworth Jerry Grant 
 

Iowa Gerald Dorscheid X   Waukesha Richard Manke X 

          Waukesha Robert Thelen, II X 

          Waukesha Karl Nilson X 

Others present for all or part of the meeting: Joni Graves and Susan Sloper (SWWRPC); Ken Lucht (WSOR); 

Frank Huntington and Roger Larson (WisDOT); Dick Goddard (Pink Lady RTC): Kathy Jennings (MSA for the 

Village of Arena, WI); Bonnie DeGroot and Mack Sherman (Village of Spring Grove, IL).  

3.  Motion accepting Graves’ certification of the meeting’s Public Notice / Manke / Van Schwartz / Passed Unanimously. 

4.  Motion approving the Agenda, prepared by Graves / Van Schwartz / Dorscheid / Passed Unanimously. 

5.  Motion concurring with the XCom’s March, April, and May 2008 actions, summarized in a handout prepared by 

Graves / Kuhnke / Van Schwartz / Passed Unanimously. 

6.  Motion approving the draft April XCom and May XCom Minutes and draft Notes from the May 28
th
 Rail Inspection 

Trip, prepared by Graves and Susan Sloper, SWWRPC / Manke, who said they were very good Minutes / Volz / 

Passed Unanimously. 

7.  Public Comment / NA 

8.  Correspondence & Communications – Graves and Sloper circulated copies of the recent Lower Wisconsin Riverway 

Resolution related to trails and referenced the related media coverage in the Sauk Prairie Eagle. 

Graves said there was a pending staffing change at the SWWRPC and that Susan Sloper, who had provided some staff 

support for the WTTYC, had taken a Community Planner position with the City of Fitchburg. Nilson thanked Sloper 

for her work and said “We will miss you!” 

Commissioner Ruf arrived prior to the Reports. 

REPORTS 

9.  Wisconsin & Southern Railroad’s Operations – Ken Lucht introduced himself for the benefit of the new 

Commissioners and thanked them for their interest. He explained that he was Graves’ predecessor at the SWWRPC 

and had also staffed this Commission, prior to going to WSOR. As part of the monthly Operator’s Report, he 



summarized maintenance activities including weed spraying, which they are now contracting out, and brush cutting 

on part of the system. The tie gang is very busy and if all ties were on property, they could do 1,500 / day. The 

continuous-welded-rail installation project will start later this month (Hartford-to-Horicon). He recapped the May 28
th
 

rail inspection trip, from Zenda (near the Illinois border) to Janesville which went on both 90 lb rail and new 

continuous-welded-rail, which had been installed in 2007. Kuhnke thanked WSOR for the trip and Nilson encouraged 

Commissioners to participate if they can, noting that some of the rail had been installed 1911 and 1917, and that the 

upgrade to continuous-welded-rail is good example of the improvements and progress being made by the state, the rail 

transit commissions, and a small railroad operating on this public system. Coopman said that Rock County has its own 

pavement operation and commends WSOR for their cooperation with the County, which he said has been 

commendable – especially in comparison with efforts to work with a Class I railroad. Ruf said she regretted missing 

the trip due to other commitments, and asked what is done with the material that is replaced. Lucht explained that 

some is reused on sidings or in the yard, but the majority is recycled and that there are several recyclers with 

operations on the system. She also asked about weed spraying and whether adjacent property owners are notified. 

Lucht said public works is notified and that they only spray about 10 ft from the tracks and there is no overspray. Van 

Schwartz said the weed spray is usually biodegradable and that there is no run-off. Lucht said that in addition to 

occasional inspection trips for Commissioners, WSOR will also be providing inspection trip opportunities for local 

elected officials. The first of these is scheduled for Wednesday, June 11
th
 on the Madison Sub, which he said is in 

tremendous need of rehab with some track in very poor condition. The next inspection trip planned for WRRTC 

Commissioners is scheduled for Friday, October 10
th
, on the Madison Sub and will show some of the work that will 

have been done over the summer. Lucht said May 14
th
 was Operation Lifesaver Day and they worked with the UW-

Madison Police, City of Madison Police, Dane County, the State Patrol, Middleton, and Shorewood Hills. He said 

there were about 20 violations and six citations were issued (with 6-point penalties and fines). Operation Lifesaver 

Day had been publicized in advance and the intent of such events is to promote public safety awareness. Regarding 

proposals for State funding (in the biennial budget), and for the 2009 capital projects local match (2009 county 

funding), Lucht said WSOR has gone on record supporting the capital plan for the state’s biennial budget at $11M / 

year. Coopman said budget planning is starting at the county level and asked that direction from the Commission be 

provided to the counties following the July meeting if not today. He recommended strongly that each county consider 

an increase from $25,000 to $30,000 annually. He also asked about Jefferson County’s interest in joining the 

Commission and Lucht said discussions were in progress and that WSOR hoped they would join. Manke said there is 

a 2% increase cap on county budgets, which may be a factor in any increases, noting that 2% would be $500. 

FOLLOW-UP: At the July meeting, WSOR will provide info on planned 2009 capital projects so the WRRTC can 
submit its annual budget request to its eight member counties and to Green County (Pecatonica RTC).  

10. WRRTC Administrator’s Report – Joni Graves provided an update on appointments to the Commission, said the 

only vacancy is with Crawford County, and that approximately 25% of the Commission’s members are new 

appointees. The report for the Commission’s website, www.wrrtc.org, was circulated. Graves said the other items on 

which she had been working appear elsewhere on the Agenda. 

11. WRRTC Financials – Jim Matzinger (Dane County Highway Department’s CPA and WRRTC’s accountant) 

distributed copies of the Treasurer’s Report and a summary of pending bills. He provided a more detailed overview 

for new Commissioners and explained some of the history of project funding. Frank Huntington, WisDOT, provided 

some clarification and background related to funds in the Commission’s General Fund and explained that WisDOT 

contributes 80% for major rehabilitating projects and that the remainder is provided as a local match from WSOR and 

the Rail Transit Commissions. Green County, which is the only member of the Pecatonica Rail Transit Commission 

with active rail that is not also a member of the WRRTC contributes its share for rehab projects to the WRRTC (the 

other WRRTC/PRTC members are Rock and Iowa).  Regarding bills, Matzinger explained that one was for Illinois 

taxes on the Commission’s rail corridor in Illinois, for which the Commission is reimbursed by WSOR. 

Motion accepting the Treasurer’s Report and approving payment of the Commission’s bills, as presented / 

Kuhnke / Scallon / Passed Unanimously. 

12. WisDOT Report – no preliminary report had been provided; during discussion it was explained that Frank 

Huntington, WisDOT, was Lucht’s predecessor at the SWWRPC and had worked there for 21 years and had worked 

very closely with the rail transit commissions. Huntington did provide a brief update on projects and said there will be 

no additional funding until after the biennial budget is passed; WisDOT will be using all available rail rehab funds in 

the meantime. He said he didn’t expect that the program would get less money for rail in the next budget, but that he 

didn’t know whether the program would be likely to get more. Regarding the Badger Ammunition site in Sauk 

County, he said there has been some progress with GSA and that he hopes to have final language approved before the 

http://www.wrrtc.org/


end of the year, at which point it would have to go through some federal committees but he hopes that process could 

go quickly. Nilson asked if the GS stood for “glacial speed,” which was met with laughter, and Huntington laughed 

and clarified that it is the federal government’s General Services Administration. 

The Commission took a break at 11:00 a.m. and returned to business at 11:10 a.m. 

COMMISSION BUSINESS 

13. WRRTC Election of Officers – the Chair asked Graves to explain the election process, which she did referencing a 

handout in the Commission’s packet and distributing another handout. She said that although they were unable to 

attend today’s meeting, both Commissioner Gray (Dane County, serving as First Treasurer) and Commissioner 

Anderson (Iowa County, serving as an Advocate) had asked her to convey their interest in continuing to serve on the 

Executive Committee. It was explained that there are eight member counties and the nine-member Executive 

Committee includes at least one representative from each county. 

 Chair / Manke nominated Nilson (Waukesha County) to continue to serve as Chair / Sweeney seconded / hearing 

no other nominations, passed unanimously. 

 First Vice Chair / Kuhnke (Walworth County) was asked and said he would be willing to continue to serve as 

First Vice Chair / Van Schwartz seconded / hearing no other nominations, passed unanimously. 

 Second Vice Chair / Sprecher nominated Volz (Sauk County) / Van Schwartz seconded / hearing no other 

nominations, passed unanimously. 

 First Secretary / Kuznacic nominated Sweeney (Rock County) / T.Thomas seconded / hearing no other 

nominations, passed unanimously. 

 First Secretary / Sweeney nominated Scallon (Grant County) / Ruf seconded / hearing no other nominations, 

passed unanimously. 

 First Treasurer / Kuhnke nominated Gray (Dane County) to continue to serve as First Treasurer/ Van Schwartz 

seconded / hearing no other nominations, passed unanimously. 

 Second Treasurer / Van Schwartz nominated Dorscheid (Iowa County) / T.Thomas seconded / hearing no other 

nominations, passed unanimously. 

 Advocate / Scallon nominated Cornford (Crawford County) to continue to serve as Advocate (a position he had 

assumed mid-year, following the death of Crawford County’s Ted Sheckler, who had served on the Executive 

Committee) / Volz seconded / hearing no other nominations, passed unanimously. 

 Advocate / with only one position remaining on the Executive Committee, it was noted  that both Anderson (Iowa 

County) and Van Schwartz (Dane County) had been elected in 2007 to serve as Advocates / Kuhnke nominated 

Van Schwartz to continue to serve as Advocate / Thelin seconded / hearing no other nominations, passed 

unanimously. 

Nilson said he appreciated Anderson’s service and that it was unfortunate to lose a member of the XCom who was 

interested in continuing to serve and said that he hoped Anderson would continue to be active as a member of the Full 

Commission. 

14. Update on Village of Arena, WI, request that a shed located on WRRTC’s property be removed – Kathy 

Jennings, MSA, spoke on behalf of the Village. She said she had followed up on the interest expressed at the last 

meeting in burning the building and had learned that the DNR requires an asbestos inspector to be hired (at a cost of 

about $300 to $500) plus a notification fee to DNR $75. Dorscheid asked about the overhead wires and Jennings said 

she was not sure about whether there would be additional expenses for that. Van Schwartz said he doubted that there 

was any asbestos. He said Commissioner Gray had asked about having members of the local Amish community 

dismantle the building and Nilson asked if that could be explored. There was consensus that having the lumber used 

would be preferable and Jennings said the Village would be OK with the Commission taking time explore the idea. 

Van Schwartz said he and Gray would work on this issue and report back to the Commission. 

FOLLOW-UP: The Village of Arena’s request that a shed located on WRRTC’s property be removed will continue to 
be on the Agenda; Van Schwartz and Gray will look into the feasibility of having members of the local Amish 
community remove the structure from the site. 

15. Update on Village of Spring Grove, IL, request re WRRTC’s property – Mack Sherman and Bonnie DeGroot 

distributed handouts including pictures, which showed tie kegs left on property by the railroad. Sherman said about 

three years ago Graves and some Commissioners were there and the property was locked, but spoke to concerns about 

public safety in an area that is poorly lit and  said the building has been broken into numerous times, despite efforts to 



keep it locked. Nilson noted that such access is trespassing, and Van Schwartz said the property is posted. Nilson said 

it is on a dead-end road, which the Commission believes that it owns. Sherman said there is one residence on the road 

and one business and that both use the road. Sherman said the Village has recently acquired the unused fish hatchery, 

will be making improvements as a nature preserve, and has concerns about aesthetics. He explained that Direct 

Source, which is at the end of the road, had provided a quote for demolition and cleaning up the site. He said they 

have all the necessary permits from the state for the disposal and also have the advantage of their proximity, and that 

they have concluded that there is no asbestos. Sherman said he thinks complete demolition would be the best solution 

to the problem the quote is a very good price and that. He said the Village’s number one concern is removal of the 

structure and is willing to contribute 50% of the cost, shared with the Commission, and would not be asking the 

railroad to contribute. Graves asked about the tie barrels and whether WSOR would want them to be included in the 

disposal. Lucht said WSOR has them piled up because they plan to recycle them and that WSOR will continue to use 

the site as a staging area for railroad operations. Van Schwartz asked about the building on the fish hatchery property 

and DeGroot said she was in the process of writing a grant application seeking funding for improvements. Van 

Schwartz asked about sewer and water service to the site and the Village’s representatives said they would take care 

of those issues. Coopman said that said that in Wisconsin, a well would have to be capped and that the cost would be 

$500 to $1,000 if the same regulations apply in Illinois. Sherman said county regulations apply in Illinois and that 

requirements pertain to proximity to other structures or septic fields, noting that nothing could be built on the adjacent 

property so it would not be likely to be an issue. However, he said that if there were such costs, the village would bear 

them. Nilson asked whether the Village would make these commitments in writing and Sherman said if the 

Commission would take action committing to the 50-50 cost-share for demolition, as outlined in the quote from Direct 

Source, the Village would turn it over to its attorney who would work with the Commission’s attorney to draft the 

appropriate Agreement(s). 

Motion to enter into an Agreement with the Village of Spring Grove, IL, with the following provisions: (1) the 

Wisconsin River Rail Transit Commission (WRRTC) will set aside a maximum of $6,000, of which $5,400 

would contribute to one-half of the bid, provided by the Village of Spring Grove (the Village), for demolition of 

the structure and removal of property owned by the Commission; (2) the WRRTC authorizes the preparation 

and execution of a deed for the 60’ ROW for the “Fish Hatchery Road” (the Road) which is on its property and 

if, at any time, it is determined that the Road belongs to the Village this easement would be null and void; (3) 

the Village will take responsibility for maintaining the Road, including pavement, maintenance, and snow 

removal; (4) the Wisconsin & Southern Railroad (WSOR) will supervise work on site, and this may require the 

cost of a flagger; WSOR would bear this cost if only for a few hours – otherwise WSOR may require that this 

cost be reimbursed by the Village. WSOR has salvage materials on-site, which it will identify to the Village; (5) 

the Village will waive the cost of any and all permits, per previous correspondence; (6) the Village will take full 

responsibility for working with Con Ed and any related requirements and expense; the WRRTC has no 

responsibility related to the electrical service; (7) the Village will take full responsibility for disconnecting the 

sewer / water line / well and any related requirements and expense; the WRRTC has no responsibility related 

to disconnecting the sewer / water line / well; (8) related legal documents / agreements will be prepared by the 

Village’s legal counsel and approved by the WRRTC’s attorney before going into effect / Van Schwartz / 

Dorscheid / Passed Unanimously. 

This action on a longstanding issue was met with applause by Commissioners and staff. DeGroot and Sherman 

thanked the Commission and its staff for working with them to resolve the matter.  

FOLLOW-UP: The Commission’s attorney, Eileen Brownlee, will work with the Village’s legal Counsel to finalize the 
agreement with the Village of Spring Grove, per the Commission’s action.  

In other discussion, Van Schwartz had said that he would like to conduct another “Railroad 101” session and, with so 

many new commissioners he anticipates that it could be greatly expanded for this year. Ruf said this would be very 

helpful. Nilson briefly explained the Mission of the Commissions, which is the preservation of freight rail service. 

Graves had provided new Commissioners with a copy of the WRRTC’s “Job Description for Commissioners” at the 

beginning of the meeting.  

FOLLOW-UP: Planning for an expanded “Railroad 101” information session will be on the next Agenda. 

16. Motion adjourning the meeting at 11:50 a.m. / Coopman / Van Schwartz / Passed Unanimously. 

 


